
Arts Commission 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
1 
 

Reviewed 1/17/2020 by LuAnn Roth 
 

The meeting of the Arts Commission of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 4:36 p.m. on 1 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and posted at City 2 
Hall. 3 
 4 
Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Mayor Kim Smith, Ald. Jim Olson, 5 
Linda Lyche, Dani McAlister, Deb Carlson, LuAnn Roth 6 
 7 
Also Present:  Ald. Diane Wulf 8 
 9 
Excused Absence:  Joyce Dively 10 
 11 
Item 2 – Approval of minutes from the previous meeting(s) 12 
 13 
Motion by Ald. Olson, second by Deb, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting as 14 
printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 15 
 16 
On voice vote, motion carried, 5-0, with one abstention (Mayor K. Smith). 17 
 18 
Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 19 
 20 
Dani called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that portion of the 21 
meeting. 22 
 23 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 24 
 25 
Item 4 – Comments on Remodel of Center 90 26 
 27 
Mayor K. Smith said she believes the Center 90 project, which has included remodeling the face 28 
of the structure and removing the walkway, has been completed. 29 
 30 
Ald. Olson noted the Utilities Committee had discussed individuals having a place to wait in 31 
Center 90 while they wait for Shared Ride Transit vehicles to pick them up.  Ald. Olson also 32 
noted there is a heated hallway located between 151 Hair Company and Redemption Bookstore 33 
that goes to the public restrooms.  Ald. Olson said he had suggested contacting Center 90 about 34 
allowing individuals to wait for the Shared Ride vehicle at that location during the winter 35 
months. 36 
 37 
Mayor K. Smith said the city also is attempting to have more of a dialogue with Running, Inc., 38 
which operates Shared Ride Taxi in the City of Onalaska, and the Villages of Holmen and West 39 
Salem. 40 
 41 
Deb asked if individuals may access the walkway via a separate door, or if they must enter it 42 



Arts Commission 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
2 
 

Reviewed 1/17/2020 by LuAnn Roth 
 

through a business’ doors. 43 
 44 
Ald. Olson said the hallway is open all the way after accessing it via the primary door. 45 
 46 
Deb asked if there is any signage that identifies that location as the pickup spot for Shared Ride 47 
passengers. 48 
 49 
Ald. Olson told Deb no and said he believes the developers would need to grant permission to 50 
place such a sign at that location. 51 
 52 
Deb noted this is the first time in approximately 30 years that there has been an investment in 53 
updating Center 90, and she also pointed out there are new businesses and restaurants there that 54 
are seeking support.  Deb said she believes the commission should look into possibly enhancing 55 
Center 90. 56 
 57 
Linda suggested to commission members that they visit Center 90. 58 
 59 
Dani said perhaps a mural or a rotating gallery would enhance the hallway. 60 
 61 
Deb noted Il Luigi Italian Cuisine, which opened in 2019 in Center 90, is working with Explore 62 
La Crosse and said all the businesses located in Center 90 now have a front entrance. 63 
 64 
Ald. Olson said both the city and the businessowners within Center 90 would benefit from 65 
having a relationship with each other. 66 
 67 
Dani inquired about the rules pertaining to commission members meeting outside City Hall and 68 
visiting Center 90. 69 
 70 
Mayor K. Smith said a quorum cannot be created and suggested perhaps two commission 71 
members could take the lead. 72 
 73 
Deb asked if commission members could have a discussion with some of the new businesses 74 
located in Center 90. 75 
 76 
Mayor K. Smith said that while one of her goals is to reach out to the owner of Center 90, she 77 
has had many items to address since being appointed mayor in December. 78 
 79 
LuAnn expressed an interest in visiting Center 90 with another commission member and said 80 
perhaps the Arts Commission could have an impact at the facility.  However, Deb also noted 81 
commission members first must identify a funding source. 82 
 83 
Item 5 – Funding options for future projects 84 



Arts Commission 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
3 
 

Reviewed 1/17/2020 by LuAnn Roth 
 

 85 
Dani asked Linda, who had been active in fundraising for the sculpture at the Great River 86 
Landing, how to begin funding for projects. 87 
 88 
Linda said there first must be a project before creating a list of individuals who might be 89 
interested in assisting with funding.  Linda said she had held a reveal party at her home and 90 
invited individuals she thought might be interested in providing some financial assistance so they 91 
could see the proposed sculpture and ask questions.  Linda said it is important to engage people. 92 
 93 
LuAnn asked if it is even possible to fundraise in that manner because the Arts Commission is an 94 
official City of Onalaska commission. 95 
 96 
Mayor K. Smith expressed confidence a manner in which to fundraise can be determined when 97 
the commission reaches that point. 98 
 99 
Ald. Olson referred to an idea that was suggested at the November 20 Arts Commission in which 100 
a fiscal operation could be started for different city projects, and individuals would be invited to 101 
make ongoing contributions for the community in perpetuity. 102 
 103 
Mayor K. Smith asked, “It would go the OEF [Onalaska Enhancement Foundation]?” 104 
 105 
Ald. Olson said, “Whatever the issue was.” 106 
 107 
Dani told commission members she believes this ties into Item 6 and said, “People who aren’t 108 
quite sure what the next project is, but they want to make sure we have funding, so they donate 109 
yearly.” 110 
 111 
Ald. Olson said, “Something like that.  It would be ongoing and beneficial to the people we 112 
could count on, and if they expect us to come up with some ideas to make that viable and 113 
something you want to be a part of.”  Ald. Olson noted he is up for reelection in April as First 114 
District Alderperson and told commission members he would be happy to make a donation if he 115 
wins. 116 
 117 
Linda said she believes it is helpful to identify projects. 118 
 119 
Dani suggested that the first project be something simple, such as a rotating gallery in the 120 
hallway at Center 90. 121 
 122 
Deb suggested perhaps installing benches in the hallway at Center 90. 123 
 124 
Item 6 – Discussion on developing “Friends of the Arts” 125 
 126 



Arts Commission 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
4 
 

Reviewed 1/17/2020 by LuAnn Roth 
 

LuAnn asked if perhaps a fundraiser could be held. 127 
 128 
Dani suggested finding local artists who don’t have a public presence and creating a map so that 129 
the public may tour their studios. 130 
 131 
LuAnn said perhaps studio tours would generate interest and a pamphlet or a donation form 132 
could be created. 133 
 134 
Deb noted Downtown Main Street sells tickets for the historical tour in the City of La Crosse, 135 
and she asked if tickets for an art tour may be sold in Onalaska at $15 or $20 apiece.  Deb said 136 
the participating artists in a studio tour would make a financial contribution, but they also would 137 
be receiving exposure. 138 
 139 
Mayor K. Smith said that while she is certain there are details that would need to be worked out 140 
and the commission likely would need to go through the Parks and Recreation Board, “there’s 141 
always a way to do it.  You just have to figure out what the way is.”  Mayor K. Smith noted the 142 
city sells tickets for the Aquatic Center and said the commission would need to work within 143 
some structure.  Mayor K. Smith offered to speak with City Attorney Amanda Jackson and ask 144 
her if she could create a tutorial for the commission. 145 
 146 
LuAnn offered to contact middle and high school art teachers and ask them if they are aware of 147 
artists in Onalaska who might be interested in participating in a studio tour or with a rotating 148 
gallery. 149 
 150 
Mayor K. Smith noted the commission had begun the discussion with the possibility of art studio 151 
tours and shifted to a moving art display.  Mayor K. Smith she believes these are two ideas. 152 
 153 
LuAnn said the art display would be permanent, but what is being displayed would change. 154 
 155 
Mayor K. Smith said the library would be a better location for a rotating art display than Center 156 
90. 157 
 158 
Deb suggested perhaps creating a mural at Center 90. 159 
 160 
LuAnn said she believes mural at Center 90 should be visible from the street. 161 
 162 
Deb said she believes artwork at Center 90 should be placed outside so that it captures the 163 
public’s attention and beautifies the facility. 164 
 165 
Mayor K. Smith suggested checking to see if there is a public right-of-way near that area and 166 
placing art there. 167 
 168 



Arts Commission 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
5 
 

Reviewed 1/17/2020 by LuAnn Roth 
 

Item 7 – Proposals for sustaining funds 169 
 170 
Dani said she believes this item comes back to Item 6. 171 
 172 
Ald. Olson said he believes sustaining funds will take care of itself once projects have been 173 
identified and a plan has been implemented. 174 
 175 
Item 8 – Possible future projects 176 
 177 

A. Trail of Sunfish 178 
B. Sculptures 179 
C. Transformer-wrapped art 180 
D. Tile mural of poem from sculpture dedication 181 

 182 
Deb said she believes transformer-wrapped art would be an easy initial project if the commission 183 
can decide what the art should be.  Deb asked which transformers are being considered. 184 
 185 
Dani asked if the commission should invite to one of its meetings a city employee who is 186 
knowledgeable about the transformers. 187 
 188 
Deb told commission members the City of La Crosse is working on transformer wraps and said 189 
the wraps are to make the transformer more attractive if it is in a visible area.  Deb suggested 190 
perhaps targeting transformers that are located in beautification areas and then determining a 191 
design.  Deb said the appropriate individuals could ensure that the design is acceptable and 192 
utilizes the correct material. 193 
 194 
Linda asked Deb if she knows who is working on the transformer wraps in La Crosse, and if she 195 
could speak to him/her. 196 
 197 
Deb told Linda she will be able to do so and said, “I’m not going to share yet unless I get 198 
permission to, but I know one that they’re working on.  It’s a private individual who wants it 199 
done, but I don’t know that that party is going to pay for it.  I think they’re looking for somebody 200 
else to pay for it, but at least I can get some more information.”  Deb said she also can contact 201 
Mike Herro of Xcel Energy and ask if Xcel has been included in the process. 202 
 203 
Mayor K. Smith addressed the potential rotating art display at the library and told commission 204 
members the city would need to speak with La Crosse County as the City of Onalaska owns the 205 
building, but the books are owned by La Crosse County, which also employs the staff.  Mayor K. 206 
Smith also said she believes the commission should have a report in the future with the Parks and 207 
Recreation Department as much of what is being discussed supplements what that department 208 
does. 209 
 210 



Arts Commission 
of the City of Onalaska 
Tuesday, January 14, 2020 
6 
 

Reviewed 1/17/2020 by LuAnn Roth 
 

Deb asked the sunfish located on State Trunk Highway 35 was a Parks and Recreation 211 
Department initiative. 212 
 213 
Mayor K. Smith said former Mayor Clarence Stellner had spearheaded the sunfish project and 214 
told commission members she is not certain how former Mayor Stellner had funded the project. 215 
 216 
Deb asked if the Parks and Recreation Department or the mayor should initiate an art project in 217 
front of Center 90. 218 
 219 
Mayor K. Smith said the Arts Commission has been charged with initiating projects. 220 
 221 
Ald. Olson asked if the sunfish has always been located along STH 35. 222 
 223 
Mayor K. Smith said there is a plaque located in the gazebo near the sunfish, and there is a date 224 
on the plaque. 225 
 226 
Ald. Wulf referred to a La Crosse Tribune article dated September 2014 and noted it states an 227 
individual had presented to former Mayor Stellner the idea of a sunfish sculpture and assisted in 228 
fundraising efforts.  Ald. Wulf noted the sunfish had been dedicated in May 1998 and told 229 
committee members it has been located along STH 35 except for two months in 2012 when it 230 
was temporarily removed and repainted. 231 
 232 
Mayor K. Smith suggested creating a list of agenda items for the next meeting. 233 
 234 
Adjournment  235 
 236 
Motion by ______, second by ________, to adjourn at 5:07 p.m. 237 
 238 
On voice vote, motion carried. 239 
 240 
 241 
Recorded by: 242 
 243 
Kirk Bey 244 


